
                                                                                                         
DEEPHAVEN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2019 

MINUTES 

 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER:  Mayor Paul Skrede called the meeting to order at 6:00 

p.m. 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Paul Skrede, Councilmember’s Tony Jewett, Steve Erickson, Kent 

Carlson, and Melissa McNeill 

 

STAFF: City Assessor Dan Distel and City Administrator Dana Young 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

The Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

3. LOCAL BOARD OF APPEAL & EQUALIZATION 
 

Mayor Skrede recessed the Regular Council meeting and convened the Board of Appeals and 

Equalization at 6:01 p.m.  He introduced City Assessor Dan Distel and Hennepin County 

Assessor Ashley Gunderson.                                         . 

 

Dan Distel stated that it was a light year for questions on market values and received only four 

phone calls from residents.  He stated that off lake properties are scheduled to increase 2% next 

year, on lake properties 1.2%, and commercial properties 12%.  He stated that all properties 

throughout Hennepin Council are scheduled to increase 4% next year. 

 

Mayor Skrede asked if the 4% increase throughout Hennepin County were due to a greater 

number of sales.   

 

Dan Distel stated that properties throughout Hennepin County have averaged a 4% annual 

increase for years.  He stated that much of the growth is impacted by the increase in lower valued 

homes.  Further discussion was held on a spreadsheet showing the market value growth in lake 

area communities. 

 

Councilmember Jewett noted that the comparison of market value growth in lake area 

communities did not include Minnetonka or Victoria. 

 

Dan Distel stated that there have been 32 sales since the evaluation period ended last October 

and his estimate of market value was at 97% of median sales.  He noted that we appear to be in 

good shape in terms of the estimated market value comparing well to actual sales price. 

 

Discussion was held on whether to continue to televise the Board of Appeal & Equalization. 

 



Councilmember Erickson stated that the meeting should be kept on camera to show residents that 

the Council doesn’t shirk from the difficult discussions that can be held at these meetings. 

 

Mayor Skrede agreed that it is important for residents to see the process and to promote 

transparency. 

 

Motion by Councilmember Erickson to close the Local Board of Appeal & Equalization meeting 

at 6:30 p.m. and to reconvene the Regular Council meeting.  Seconded by Councilmember 

Erickson.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

4. APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 

  

Motion by Councilmember Erickson to approve the Consent Agenda, consisting of the following 

items: 

 

A. Approve April 1, 2019 Council Minutes 

B. Approve  2019 SafeAssure Contract 

C. Approve March 2019 Treasurer’s Report 

 

Seconded by Councilmember Jewett.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

5. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

Jim Lundberg, Operations Manager with the Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, 

was present to present a PowerPoint presentation on the history, responsibilities, financing and 

future projects of the LMCC.  Jim Lundberg asked if the Council had any questions. 

 

Councilmember Jewett asked if the LMCC is notified by Mediacom of increases in their internet 

speed. 

 

Jim Lundberg stated that the LMCC manages the cable franchise agreement with Mediacom and 

does not have oversight of the internet. 

 

Councilmember Erickson asked Jim to give an overview on the frequent requests from residents 

for cable competition. 

 

Jim Lundberg stated that the LMCC is the franchise authority and the cable franchise is open, 

allowing any cable company to come in.  He stated that the LMCC would love to have another 

competitor.  He noted that Frontier expressed an interest a few years ago but the State of 

Minnesota went in a new direction with wireless providers and Frontier no longer has an interest 

in entering the market. 

 

Councilmember Jewett asked about CenturyLink Prism. 

 

Jim Lundberg stated that CenturyLink obtained one franchise agreement for its Prism system but 

has not shown an interest in obtaining other franchise agreements. 



 

Councilmember Erickson stated that a number of residents have expressed an interest in 5G. 

 

Jim Lundberg stated that the LMCC is not involved with 5G and noted that recent legislation 

now allows 5G to be placed on poles along the street. 

 

Administrator Young noted that this was part of the small cell legislation that was adopted by the 

State Legislature.  He stated that the Council recently adopted an ordinance to manage the 

placement of small cell technology in the City right-of-way. 

 

The Council thanked Jim for his presentation. 

 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. Other 

 

There was no other Unfinished Business this evening. 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Approve 2019 Off Sale Liquor License for Great Bottle of Wine, LLC 

 

Administrator Young stated that Peter Carroll, owner of Great Bottle of Wine, LLC, has 

submitted an application for a 2019 Off Sale License due to the fact that he is relocating his 

business from 18281 Minnetonka Blvd, Suite G to 18300 Minnetonka Blvd, Suite 202A.  

According to the MN Dept of Public Safety, any change in the location of an off sale liquor 

establishment requires a new submittal of a new Off Sale Intoxicating Liquor License.   

 

He stated that in addition to the change in physical location in Chowen’s Corner, the new 

location will be on the second floor of the office building.  The MN Dept of Public Safety does 

not require an Off Sale Liquor establishment to be handicapped accessible and the second floor 

location shouldn’t have a consequential impact in regards to handicapped accessibility due to the 

fact that Mr. Carroll’s business is conducted almost exclusively on-line 

 

Mayor Skrede stated that he hasn’t heard any complaints regarding this business. 

 

Councilmember Jewett asked if the liquor license is tied to the prior location.   

 

Administrator Young stated that a liquor license is not tied to a prior location as it is approved 

for a specific business at a specific location. 

 

Motion by Councilmember McNeill to approve the renewal of a 2019 Off Sale Liquor License to 

Great Bottle of Wine, LLC at 18300 Minnetonka Blvd, Suite 202A effective May 1, 2019.  

Seconded by Councilmember Erickson.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 

 



 

B. Present Franchise Agreement with CenterPoint Energy  

 

Administrator Young stated that the current Franchise Agreement with CenterPoint Energy 

expired on December 3, 2016.  He stated that he used a model franchise agreement developed by 

the League of Cities as a template and made a number of changes to the proposed franchise 

agreement that had been sent by CenterPoint Energy.  He stated that he heard back from 

CenterPoint Energy’s legal counsel today on the City’s proposed changes and presented his 

comments to the Council. 

 

He stated that Ordinance No. 04-65 is presented this evening for Council review and a copy has 

been posted as required by law.  He stated that following the Council’s comments on the 

proposed revisions offered by CenterPoint, he intends to submit both the Franchise Agreement 

Ordinance and Franchise fee Ordinance for Council approval on May 6
th

. 

 

Councilmember Jewett asked about including a clause to ensure that CenterPoint completes their 

gas line repairs within city streets more quickly. 

 

Mayor Skrede suggested that the Council could tighten up the language in our Right-of-Way 

Ordinance to address this issue. 

 

C. Approve Purchase of Police Department Patrol Rifles  

 

Administrator Young stated that the police department received $6,300.00 from a recent DWI 

forfeiture that has been deposited in the City’s Capital Improvement Fund for use towards future 

drug and alcohol enforcement.  He stated that the Police Department would like to use this 

money to upgrade their Vietnam era rifles, which date back to the late 60’s to early 70’s.    

 

He stated that the Department wants shorter barrels and options to mount lights and optics and 

their proposal is to upgrade the main portions of the rifle this year, and purchase the lower part of 

the rifle next year.  He stated that the first phase would cost $6,264.25 and the second phase 

would cost $1,229.75 for a total combined cost of $7,494.00.  He stated that cost estimates for a 

complete new rifle are approximately $2,000.00 per rifle, for a total estimated cost of $10,000.00 

for five new rifles. 

 

Councilmember McNeill stated that she has a problem with not purchasing entirely new rifles. 

 

The Council stated that they would like Chief Johnson to have the option of retrofitting the rifles 

as he proposed or purchasing new rifles. 

 

Motion by Councilmember Erickson to give the Police Department the option to spend 

$6,264.25 this year and $1,229.75 in 2020 to update five patrol rifles or to purchase five new 

rifles for a cost of $10,000.00.  Seconded by Councilmember McNeill.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 

 



D. Other  

  
There was no other New Business this evening. 

 

9. REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES 

  

A. Public Works Committee 
 

Administrator Young presented a review of the Public Works Committee meeting held on April 

9, 2018 on the following items: 

 

 Discussed a request for Public Works to clear the platform courts after 2” of snow has 

fallen 

 Discussed organics recycling 

 Discussed the repair of the Children’s Park fountain water line 

 Discussed the use of capital funds for new squad rifles 

 Discussed discontinuing random drug & alcohol testing of police and public works 

personnel 

 Recommended approval of the proposal submitted by Westco in the amount of 

$7,280 for a video surveillance system at Carson’s Bay 

 Discussed the installation of an elevated sidewalk along the turn lane on Minnetonka 

Blvd to enable a safer pedestrian walkway for Chimo residents to get to the 

Elementary School.   

 

Discussion was held on obtaining quotes on crack sealing several recently resurfaced city streets 

rather than contracting for filling potholes. 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion to adjourn by Councilmember Erickson, seconded by Councilmember McNeill.  Motion 

carried 5-0.  The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dana H. Young 

City Administrator 


